

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE E

15 FEBRUARY 2022, 2PM

THIS MEETING WAS LIVE STREAMED AND CAN BE VIEWED AT:

https://youtu.be/M7eaAbH-qFA

Councillors Present: Cllr Peter Snell (Chair) and

CIIr Anya Sizer.

Officers in Attendance: Amanda Nauth - Licensing and Corporate Lawyer

Suba Sriramana - Acting Principal Licensing

Officer

Jessica Feeney - Governance Services Officer

Also in Attendance: Applicants:

Solicitor - Craig Baylis

Responsible Authority: Licensing - David Tuitt

Other Persons: Holly Clelford

- 1. Election of Chair
- 1.1 Cllr Snell was duly elected to Chair the meeting.
- 2. Apologies for Absence
- 2.1 There were no apologies for absence.
- 3. Declarations of Interest
- 3.1 There were no declarations of interest.
- 4. MInutes of the Previous Meeting
- 4.1 **RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2021 were approved.



5. Licensing Sub Committee Hearing Procedure

5.1 The hearing procedure as set out in the agenda pack was explained to all participants.

6. Application to vary a Premises Licence: The Hunter S, 194 Southgate Road, N1 3HJ

- 6.1 Subangini Sriramana, Acting Principal Licensing Officer introduced the report in respect of an application for a premises licence made by Seven-Eighths Ltd. The application was to amend condition 23 to "Tables and chairs at the front of the front of the premises shall be rendered unusable at 2200hours save for a maximum of 10 smokers. Those temporarily allowed to leave the premises to smoke shall not be permitted to take their drinks with them." Members were informed that the proposed wording for condition 23 had been changed as agreed with the Police Authority. It was noted that the Police had withdrawn their representations following agreement of conditions with the applicant. Representation however remained from the Licensing Authority and Other Persons.
- 6.2 Mr Craig Baylis, solicitor for the applicant, introduced the report and made submissions speaking in support of the application.
- 6.3 The Licensing Authority representative made submissions, as set out in appendix B within the Agenda Pack.
- 6.4 Holly Clelford 'Other Person' (Appendix C4) made submissions in objection to the application, speaking also on behalf of three other residents who had submitted written representations as contained within the agenda pack.
- 6.5 The Sub Committee requested clarity on a number of points and the applicant's solicitor responded.
- 6.6 In his closing statement, Craig Baylis sought to alleviate all concerns raised by highlighting the amendments made to the application and reiterating the measures that would be put in place and urged the Sub Committee to approve the amended application.
- 6.7 During closing statements, the Licensing Authority and Other Person retained their objections to the application having felt they had not heard anything from the applicant or his solicitor to allay their concerns.

RESOLVED:

The decision:

The Licensing Sub-committee in considering this decision from the information presented to it within the report and at the hearing today has determined that having regard to the promotion of all the licensing objectives:



- The prevention of crime and disorder;
- Public safety;
- Prevention of public nuisance;
- The protection of children from harm;

the application for a premises licence has been refused in accordance with Licensing Policies LP1, LP2, LP3 and LP6 within the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy.

Reasons for the decision

The Licensing Sub-committee, having heard from the Licensing Authority and Other Persons believed that granting the application to vary the premises licence by amending condition 23 of the licence would result in the licensing objectives being undermined, and would have a negative impact on the residential area.

The Sub-committee heard from the Licensing Authority that condition 23 should be retained and it was not an unreasonable condition. The Licensing Authority confirmed that they had received complaints from local residents that condition 23 had not been compiled with. The Licensing Authority subsequently investigated the complaints from local residents, and on 21st August 2021 at 22:23 the Licensing Authority witnessed that patrons were using tables and chairs at the premises as they had not been rendered unusable by the licence holder or their staff in compliance with condition 23. The Sub-committee heard that a warning letter was sent to the licence holder on 23 August 2021 regarding this non-compliance of condition 23.

The Sub-committee heard that the Licensing Authority received further complaints from local residents in September and October 2021 when condition 23 was not being complied with mainly on weekdays. The Sub-committee also heard that the licence holder was unwilling to replace the furniture to make it easier to comply with condition 23. The Licensing Authority contended that the current condition was necessary, proportionate and should not be amended.

The Sub-committee took into account the representations made by the Other Persons objecting to the application. The Sub-committee felt that the evidence presented by the local resident was reasonable and credible.

The Sub-committee carefully considered all the representations made by the applicant's legal representative, the Licensing Authority and Other Persons. However the Sub-committee were not convinced that the premises licence should be varied by condition 23 being amended. The Sub-committee took into account that the condition was previously agreed with the Police. The Sub-committee was advised that the only way of resolving the smoking issue was by roping off the smoking area with signage (if not already in place) directing smokers to the smoking area.

The Sub-committee had concerns that conditions 28, 31 and 32 on the premises licence were not being complied with, and they had concerns regarding the licence holders understanding of the conditions on their licence in order to operate the premises responsibly.



The Sub-committee took into consideration when refusing this application to vary the premises licence that each case is considered on its merits. The Sub-committee believed that the licensing objectives could not be promoted by granting this application to amend condition 23 of the premises licence, and as such believed it was appropriate to refuse the application in its entirety.

Public Informative

There is an expectation that the Licensing Authority will carry out regular visits to the premises to ensure Conditions 28, 31 and 32 on the premises licence are being complied with by the licence holder.

7. Temporary Event Notices

7.1 There were no Temporary Event Notices.

End of Meeting

Duration of Meeting: 2.00pm - 2.45pm

Chair: Cllr Peter Snell

Contact:

Jessica Feeney 020 8356 5147 jessica.feeney@hackney.gov.uk